
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
Acrobat 9 or Adobe Reader 9, or later.

Get Adobe Reader Now!

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Pool Rules Committee
Beebe Draw Farms Authority


4 March 2013


Objective:  To support community compliance with and consistent interpretation of Pool 
Rules.


Overriding Principle:  To balance the protection of Authority assets with the 
communityʼs enjoyment of amenities.


A.  Research.  Our current Rules and a copy of the Indemnity Agreement were 
submitted to the SDA Pool through Debbie Gibbons, Executive Vice President of 
Charles T. Wilson Insurance Service.  What follows is a summary of the comments 
received from the Loss Control Department of the SDA Pool:


1) Requiring a Pool Use Waiver and Indemnity Agreement is good practice.


2) No diving, no glass or running are also good standards.


3) Not permitting large inflatable devices is also good practice since, a) large 
inflatables do not and should not take the place of supervision of children and, 
b) they obstruct a clear view of the pool.  The major liability issue for the SDA 
Pool is the prevention of drowning, especially of children under the age of 14.


4)  The controlled use of alcohol, given rules and procedures in place for its use,
     has not been an issue.


B.  The Current Rules.  Certain Rules are open to a variety of interpretaions.  The 
areas of concern begin on page three of the existing rules: (A complete copy the 
existing Rules as approved May 2012 by the Authority and the Indemnity Agreement are 
attached as Appendix 1.)  It seems reasonable that we work first toward achieving some 
agreement on what is covered by the Rules.  The text in blue are questions which may 
help to further refine the issues.   Any text in parentheses that follows is not part of the 
current existing Rules. 


Guest Privileges:


Members are permitted to bring non-resident guests; however a guest may not 
enter or remain in the facility without the sponsoring member unless authorized 
by the Pool Manager.  Guests are limited to a maximum of five (5) per family 
membership at any one time.  More than 5 guests constitute a “party”, which 
must be scheduled with the Pool Manager.  (Should this section be eliminated, or 
should the number of guests be increased to constitute a “party”?.  If it should be 
increased, what is the correct number of total members and guests before that 


1







causes the gathering to be a “party” thus requiring the event be scheduled in 
advance with the Pool Manager?)


Pool Parties


(Two kinds of parties are contemplated in this section.  The first part of the 
section quoted below governs a party of up to 20 people to be held while the pool 
is open to the public.  No provision is made for serving alcohol.)


(I.)  Pool parties must be arranged in advance with the Pool Manager.  (If the 
BBQ area is to be used on a “first-come, first-served” basis, should there be the 
option to schedule a party with the Pool Manager?  Could the BBQ area be used 
on a “first-come” basis until 5PM and then have scheduled, pre-arranged parties 
after 5PM?  If the BBQ is used on a “first-come” basis until 5PM should this affect 
staffing of the pool since additional “clean-up” may be necessary?)
Written requests must be received by the Pool Manager at least 10 days in 
advance of the desired date of the party. (Is 10 days too much lead time?  Should 
this be shortened to a week or three days?  Can requests be made in person or 
over the phone? )
Party requests will be on a first-come/first-serve basis.  Requests will only be 
accepted from persons who are at least 21 years of age.  The person requesting 
the party is responsible for proper supervision and clean-up after the party.  
General pool parties can be scheduled for a maximum of twenty (20) 
guests(members and guests?  total number of people attending?)at any time 
during regular operating hours.  Please note:  the pool will remain open to the 
public. A non-refundable fee of $30.00 is required and must be paid in advance.
(IIs 20 people the correct number for a maximum since this section of the Rules 
contemplates a “party” while the pool is still open to the public?  Should there be 
a charge for this kind of “party”?  If so, is $30 reasonable?)


(The second part of this section contemplates a private party, i.e., the pool is 
closed to the public, held after 5PM where alcohol is permitted.)


(II.)  Private pool parties can be arranged from 5:00 - 9:00PM any evening.  A 
$100 non-refundable fee  and a separate $25.00 cleaning deposit must be paid 
in advance for a private pool party.  (Are these charges reasonable?) The person 
reserving the private party will be responsible for proper supervision and after-
party cleanup.  The cleaning deposit will be returned if the Pools, Playground, 
Picnic Area, Grill and Pool Facility are left in a clean, undamaged condition.
Balloons are not allowed at the pool at any time.(They clog the pool filters.)
If consumption of alcoholic beverages is desired, it will only be permitted at a 
private, non-public event. (Should there be a separate section within the Rules 
that spells out when and where alcohol can be present?  Now it is mentioned 
briefly in the Rules under “Food and Beverages”   Since the recreational use of 
marijuana is now legal in Colorado, should it be considered in the Rules?)  The 
person requesting the private party must also obtain specific written permission 


2







from the Pool Manager as part of the request. (This appears to refer to the use of 
alcohol at a “private party”.  Is this necessary?)  Only non-glass containers are 
permitted and strict compliance with all laws regarding the purchase, 
consumption, and provision of alcohol is required.  (Again, is this better dealt with 
in a separate “alcohol” section of the Rules?


C.   Other questions.  The following issues related to pool operation came up during 
discussions: 


1)  If a pool staff member needs help in enforcing or clarifying the Rules with 
members and the pool manager is not available, who should they call?


2)  Should the gas to the BBQ which is controlled from a valve inside the pool 
building be left “on” so anyone can use the BBQ at any time?


3)  How much “clean-up” should the pool staff be expected to do following 
parties?


4)  If it is decided that scheduled pool parties take place, should there be a 
bulletin board which shows upcoming scheduled parties so members can plan 
accordingly and necessary pool staffing be provided?


3

















SERVICE AGREEMENT  
(2013 TREE PROGRAM) 


THIS SERVICE AGREEMENT for a 2013 Tree Program (“Agreement”) is entered into 
and effective as of the 12th day of March, 2013, by and between BEEBE DRAW FARMS 
AUTHORITY (the “Authority”), an authority and separate legal entity duly created pursuant to 
Section 29-1-203, Colorado Revised Statues (“C.R.S.”) and BIOTREE, LLC a Colorado 
Limited Liability Company (the “Consultant”) (each a “Party” and, collectively, the “Parties”). 


RECITALS 


WHEREAS, the Authority was organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Colorado in 
order to construct, operate and maintain certain public facilities and improvements in accordance 
with its service plan; and 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., the Authority is permitted to 
enter into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the Authority; and 


WHEREAS, the Consultant has experience in providing the services, as set forth in 
Exhibit A hereto, attached and incorporated herein (the “Services”), and is willing to provide 
such Services to the Authority for reasonable consideration; and 


WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to establish the terms by 
which the Consultant will provide the Services to the Authority; 


NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises set forth 
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as 
follows: 


I.  CONSULTANT DUTIES AND AUTHORITY 


1.1 Duties of Consultant.  The Consultant shall: 


(a) Perform the Services; 


(b) Take all precautions necessary for safely and prudently conducting the 
Services required by this Agreement, including maintaining insurance as required under 
Section 4.2 hereof. 


(c) Advise the Authority of the status of the Services required by this 
Agreement on a regular basis and work in coordination with the Authority’s consultants 
to assure that the Authority has the most complete information available for the exercise 
of the Authority’s powers and discretionary authority. 


(d) Refrain from entering into any contract, oral or written, in the name of the 
Authority, and from incurring any debt, liability or obligation for or on behalf of the 







 2 


Authority.  All obligations incurred by the Consultant shall be obligations of the 
Consultant and the Consultant shall hold the Authority harmless therefrom. 


1.2 Limitations on Authority. 


(a) The Consultant shall have no right or authority, expressed or implied, to 
take any action, expend any sum, incur any obligation, or otherwise obligate the 
Authority in any manner whatsoever, except to the extent specifically provided in this 
Agreement or specifically authorized or ratified by the board of directors of the Authority 
as reflected in the minutes of the Authority board meetings.  The Consultant shall at all 
times conform to the stated policies established and approved by the Authority. 


(b) Independent Contractor Status.  The Consultant is an independent 
contractor, as provided in Section 8-40-202(2)(b)(I)-(IV), C.R.S., as amended, and 
nothing herein contained shall constitute or designate the Consultant or any of its 
employees, agents, subcontractors or suppliers as employees of the Authority.  The 
Services to be performed by the Consultant shall be at its sole cost, risk and expense, and 
no part of the cost thereof shall be charged to the Authority, except the payments to be 
made by the Authority to the Consultant for the Services performed as provided herein.  
The Authority shall not be responsible for the Consultant’s means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures of work or for safety precautions incident thereto.  The 
Consultant is not entitled to worker’s compensation benefits and the Consultant is 
obligated to pay federal and state income taxes on moneys earned pursuant to this 
Agreement. 


1.3 Compliance with Applicable Law.  The Consultant shall provide the Services set 
forth herein in full compliance with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations of any federal, 
state, county, or municipal body or agency thereof having jurisdiction over the activities of the 
Authority. 


1.4 No Right or Interest in Authority Assets.  The Consultant shall have no right or 
interest in any of the Authority’s assets, nor any claim or lien with respect thereto, arising out of 
this Agreement or the performance of the Services contemplated herein. 


1.5 Certification of Compliance with Illegal Alien Statute.  By its execution hereof, 
the Consultant confirms and ratifies all of the certifications, statements, representations and 
warranties set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference. 


1.6 Work Product.   “Work Product” shall consist of all written materials maintained 
by the Consultant in connection with performance of this Agreement, including but not limited to 
all test results, logs, surveys, maps, plans, drawings, specifications, reports, PDF formatted 
electronic files and other documents, in whatever form.  The Consultant shall maintain 
reproducible copies of any test results and logs which it obtains and shall make them available 
for the Authority’s use, and shall provide such copies to the Authority upon request at reasonable 
commercial printing rates.  Consultant agrees all right, title and interest in the Work Product is 
and shall remain the property of the Authority.  If requested by the Authority, Consultant shall 
execute and deliver such documents as shall be necessary in the Authority’s sole discretion, to 







 3 


assign, transfer and convey all rights in the Work Product to the Authority or its assignee.  If 
Consultant fails to execute any documents required under this Section 1.6, then Consultant 
hereby irrevocably appoints the Authority its attorney-in-fact for the purpose of executing any 
required transfers of ownership or interests and any other documents necessary to effectuate this 
Section 1.6.  Further, all Work Product, whether in paper or electronic form, reproductions 
thereof, or any information or instruments derived therefrom, shall be provided to the Authority 
immediately upon termination of this Agreement. 


II.  COMPENSATION 


2.1 Compensation.  The Consultant shall be paid as set forth in Exhibit A attached 
hereto with a total contract amount not to exceed $6,170, unless otherwise approved in advance 
by the Authority through a written change order. 


2.2 Monthly Invoices and Payments.  The Consultant shall submit to the Authority a 
monthly invoice, in a form acceptable to the Authority.  Invoices shall be submitted and paid no 
more frequently than once a month. 


2.3 Expenses.  The Consultant is responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance 
of this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or compensation except as set 
forth in Exhibit A, unless otherwise approved in advance by the Authority in writing. 


2.4 Subject to Annual Budget and Appropriation; Authority Debt.  The Authority 
does not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial 
obligation whatsoever.  The performance of those obligations of the Authority hereunder 
requiring budgeting and appropriation of funds is subject to annual budgeting and appropriation.  
Nothing herein constitutes or creates an indebtedness or debt of the Authority within the meaning 
of any Colorado constitutional provision or statutory limitation. 


III.  TERM AND TERMINATION 


3.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date set forth above, and 
shall expire upon satisfactory completion of the Services.  Extensions of this Agreement must be 
in writing and executed by both Parties. 


3.2 Termination.  The Authority may terminate this Agreement for convenience or for 
cause, in whole or in part, by written notice of termination given to the Consultant at least ten 
(10) days prior to the effective date of such termination.  The Consultant may terminate this 
Agreement for convenience or for cause, in whole or in part, by written notice of termination 
given to the Authority at least ten (10) days prior to the effective date of such termination.  Any 
termination notice provided pursuant to this Section 3.2 shall specify the extent of termination 
and the effective date of the same. 


The Authority shall pay the Consultant for all Services satisfactorily performed 
through the termination date. 







 4 


IV.  INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 


4.1 Indemnification.  The Consultant hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the 
Authority and its affiliated entities or other persons or entities designated by the Authority, and 
their respective directors, trustees, officers, members, managers, agents and employees 
(collectively, the “Indemnitees”), harmless from any and all liability for damage, including but 
not limited to the reimbursement of attorneys’ fees and costs, arising out of death or bodily 
injury to persons or damage to property, in such amount that is represented by the degree or 
percentage of negligence or fault attributable to the Consultant and/or its agents, representatives, 
subcontractors, or suppliers. 


4.2 Insurance Requirements.  The Consultant shall procure, at its sole cost and 
expense, the insurance coverages set forth below, which insurance shall be placed with insurance 
companies rated at least “A:XIII” by A.M. Best Company.  The Consultant shall give notice to 
the Authority at least thirty (30) days prior to the cancellation or nonrenewal of such policies.  
The Consultant shall give notice to the Authority within five (5) business days, or as soon as 
practicable, of any modification of any such policies.  Consultant’s cost of maintaining the 
insurances required hereunder shall not be considered a reimbursable expense of the Consultant.  
The Consultant shall, upon request, promptly furnish the Authority with copies of policies 
obtained pursuant to this Section 4.2.  Prior to commencing the Services, the Consultant shall 
furnish the Authority with certificates evidencing such insurance and provided further, however, 
with respect to the Workers’ Compensation Insurance required below, the Consultant must 
furnish to the Authority, prior to the commencement of any Services, duly executed and 
validated forms as prescribed by the state authority having jurisdiction evidencing that such 
insurance is in full force and effect.  The Authority shall not pay any invoices until Consultant 
provides the certificates evidencing such insurance and Workers’ Compensation coverage. 


(a) Liability Insurance Coverage. 


(i) Workers’ Compensation Insurance.  A Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance Policy in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Authority 
and in an amount not less than the statutory benefits, including Employer’s 
Liability Insurance with limits of liability of not less than (i) $500,000 for bodily 
injury by accident, each accident, (ii) $500,000 for bodily injury by disease, each 
employee, and (iii) $500,000 aggregate liability for disease.  The Workers’ 
Compensation Insurance Policy, or an endorsement to such policy, must include a 
waiver of subrogation in favor of the Authority. 


(ii) Commercial General Liability Insurance.  A Commercial General 
Liability Insurance Policy written on an occurrence basis, in form and substance 
reasonably acceptable to the Authority, which policy shall include, without 
limitation, the Authority as an additional insured, a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement in favor of the Authority, cross liability and severability of interest 
endorsements, endorsements providing that the coverage afforded by the 
insurance policy or policies is primary and non-contributing with any other 
insurance maintained by or available to the Authority, and appropriate language 
providing the following coverages:  Premises and Operations Liability; Personal 







 5 


Injury Liability; Broad Form Property Damage Liability; Contractual Liability 
supporting the Consultant’s indemnification agreements in favor of the Authority; 
Completed Operations and Products Liability; and Independent Contractor’s 
Protective Liability.  The Commercial General Liability Insurance Policy must be 
written with a combined single limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 for 
each occurrence of bodily injury and/or property damage and an annual aggregate 
of liability of not less than $2,000,000 for bodily injury and/or property damage, 
and an annual aggregate of liability of not less than $2,000,000 for Completed 
Operations and Products Liability. 


(iii) Automobile Liability Insurance.  An Automobile Liability 
Insurance Policy written on a per accident basis, in form and substance reasonably 
acceptable to the Authority.  The Automobile Liability Insurance Policy must 
provide coverage for all owned, hired, rented and non-owned automobiles, and 
must include uninsured motorist coverages.  The Automobile Liability Insurance 
Policy must be written with a combined single limit of liability of not less than 
$1,000,000 for each accident for bodily injury and/or property damage. 


(iv) Excess Liability Insurance.  An Excess Liability Insurance Policy 
written in excess of the coverages provided by the insurance policies described in 
the preceding Subsections 4.2(a)(i) - (iii), in form and substance reasonably 
acceptable to the Authority, which policy will include the Authority as additional 
insured.  The Excess Liability Insurance Policy must be written with a combined 
single limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence of bodily injury/or 
property damage and annual aggregate. 


(b) Failure to Obtain and Obligation to Maintain Insurance.  If the Consultant 
fails to furnish and maintain insurance as required by this Section 4.2, the Authority may 
purchase such insurance on behalf of the Consultant and deduct the cost of such 
insurance premium(s) from the compensation otherwise owed to the Consultant, and the 
Consultant shall furnish to the Authority any information needed to obtain such 
insurance.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all insurance policies required 
by the terms of this section shall be kept in full force and effect until the date of final 
payment to the Consultant for the Services specified in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the foregoing insurance 
requirements are in no way intended to, and will not in any manner, limit or qualify the 
liabilities and/or indemnities assumed by the Consultant under or pursuant to this 
Agreement. 


(c) Effect of Approval or Acceptance of Insurance.  Authority acceptance 
and/or approval of any or all of the insurances required hereunder does not and shall not 
be construed to relieve Consultant from any obligations, responsibilities or liabilities 
under this Agreement. 







 6 


V.  MISCELLANEOUS 


5.1 Assignment.  The Consultant shall not assign any of its rights or delegate any of 
its duties hereunder to any person or entity.  Any purported assignment or delegation in violation 
of the provisions hereof shall be void and ineffectual. 


5.2 Modification; Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended from time to time 
by agreement between the Parties hereto, provided, however, that no amendment, modification, 
or alteration of the terms or provisions hereof shall be binding upon the Authority or the 
Consultant unless the same is in writing and duly executed by the Parties. 


5.3 Integration.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties 
with respect to the matters addressed herein.  All prior discussions and negotiations regarding the 
subject matter hereof are merged herein. 


5.4 Severability.  If any covenant, term, condition, or provision under this Agreement 
shall, for any reason, be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of 
such covenant, term, condition, or provision shall not affect any other provision contained 
herein, the intention being that such provisions are severable. 


5.5 Governing Law and Jurisdiction.  This Agreement shall be governed and 
construed under the laws of the State of Colorado. Venue for any legal action relating to this 
Agreement shall be exclusive to the State Authority Court in and for the County of Weld, 
Colorado. 


5.6 Paragraph Headings.  Paragraph headings are inserted for convenience of 
reference only. 


5.7 Parties Interested Herein.  Nothing expressed or implied in this Agreement is 
intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person other than the Authority 
and the Consultant any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any 
covenants, terms, conditions, or provisions thereof, and all the covenants, terms, conditions, and 
provisions in this Agreement by and on behalf of the Authority and the Consultant shall be for 
the sole and exclusive benefit of the Authority and the Consultant. 


5.8 Notices.  All notices, demands, requests or other communications to be sent by 
one party to the other hereunder or required by law shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 
have been validly given or served by delivery of same in person to the addressee or by courier 
delivery via Federal Express or other nationally recognized overnight air courier service, by 
electronically-confirmed facsimile transmission, or by depositing same in the United States mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 


To Authority: Beebe Draw Farms Authority 
141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150 
Lakewood, Colorado  80228 
Phone: (303) 987-0835 
Fax:  (303) 987-2032 
Attn:  Lisa Johnson 







 7 


  
With a Copy To: McGeady Sisneros, P.C. 


450 E. 17th Avenue, Suite 400 
Denver, Colorado  80203 
Phone: (303) 592-4380 
Fax: (303) 592-4385 
Attn: MaryAnn M. McGeady, Esq. 


  
To Consultant: BioTree, LLC 


2606 Weld County Road 12 
Erie, Colorado  80516 
Phone: (720) 203-3072 
Fax:  (303) 828-4420 
Attn:  Steve Barnett 


 
All notices, demands, requests or other communications shall be effective upon 


such personal delivery or one (1) business day after being deposited with Federal Express or 
other nationally recognized overnight air courier service, upon electronic confirmation of 
facsimile transmission, or three (3) business days after deposit in the United States mail.  By 
giving the other party hereto at least ten (10) days’ written notice thereof in accordance with the 
provisions hereof, each of the Parties shall have the right from time to time to change its address. 


5.9 Default/Remedies.  If either Party fails to perform any of its responsibilities, 
obligations or agreements to be performed in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, 
and if such failure of performance continues for a period of thirty (30) days following written 
notice of default from the other Party (or such additional period of time as may reasonably be 
required to cure such default; provided that the curative action is commenced within such thirty 
(30) day period and is diligently and continuously pursued to completion), then the non-
defaulting Party, at its option, may elect (i) to treat this Agreement as remaining in full force and 
effect, or (ii) terminate this Agreement as of any specified date.  The non-defaulting Party shall 
additionally be entitled to exercise all remedies available at law or in equity.  In the event of any 
litigation or other proceeding to enforce the terms, covenants or conditions hereof, the non-
defaulting Party in any such litigation or other proceeding shall obtain as part of its judgment or 
award its reasonable attorney’s fees.   


5.10 Instruments of Further Assurance.  Each Party covenants it will do, execute, 
acknowledge, and deliver or cause to be done, executed, acknowledged, and delivered, such acts, 
instruments, and transfers as may reasonably be required for the performance of their obligations 
hereunder. 


5.11 Compliance with Law.  This Agreement is intended to be performed in 
accordance with and only to the extent permitted by all applicable laws, ordinances, rules, and 
regulations of the jurisdiction in which the Agreement is performed.  The Consultant declares it 
has complied and will comply with all federal, state and local laws regarding business permits, 
certificates and licenses required to perform the Services. 







 8 


5.12 Non-Waiver.  No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement, nor shall such waiver 
constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided herein, nor shall the waiver 
of any default hereunder be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent default hereunder.  
Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this Agreement, no term or condition of this 
Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a waiver, either expressed or implied, of any of 
the immunities, rights, benefits or protection provided to the Authority under the Colorado 
Governmental Immunity Act. 


5.13 Inurement.  This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the heirs, executors, 
administrator, successors, and permitted assigns of the Parties hereto. 


5.14 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 
of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document. 


5.15 Conflicts.  If any term or provision(s) in any Exhibit attached as part of this 
Agreement conflicts with any term or provision(s) in the body of this Agreement, the term or 
provision(s) contained in the body of this Agreement shall control. 


 


 


[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 







 9 


[SIGNATURE PAGE TO SERVICE AGREEMENT] 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 


Consultant: 
BIOTREE, LLC
By:  
Its:  


 
STATE OF COLORADO )  
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF   )  
 


The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of __________, 
2013, by ____________________, as ____________________ of BioTree, LLC. 


Witness my hand and official seal. 


My commission expires:   
  
  
 Notary Public 
 


Authority: 
BEEBE DRAW FARMS AUTHORITY 


By:  
 Paul Joseph Knopinski, President 


 
 
STATE OF COLORADO )  
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF   )  
 


The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of __________, 
2013, by Paul Joseph Knopinski, as President of Beebe Draw Farms Authority. 


Witness my hand and official seal. 


My commission expires:   
  
  
 Notary Public 
 







 


 A-1 


EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK/COMPENSATION 


2013 Tree Program: 


1) March - systemic root injection to control pests for the entire year (no spraying necessary) - on 
roughly 150 trees that are prone to bugs. 


150 X $15 = $2,250 


2) Early May - fertilize all 208 trees with organic fertilizer plus iron. 


208 X $9 = $1,872 


3) Late June / early July - treat all pines for blight similar to this year 


100 X $8 = $800 


4) Late August / early September - fertilize all 208 trees prior to dormancy. 


208 X $6 = $1,248 


2013 Program Total: $6,170 


 







 


 B-1 


EXHIBIT B 
CERTIFICATION OF CONSULTANT 


1. Pursuant to the requirements of Section 8-17.5–102(1), C.R.S., the Consultant hereby 
certifies to the Authority that the Consultant does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien 
who will perform work under the Agreement and that it will participate in the E-Verify Program or 
Department Program (as defined in Sections 8-17.5-101(3.3) and (3.7), C.R.S.) in order to confirm the 
employment eligibility of all employees of the Consultant who are newly hired to perform work under the 
Agreement. 


2. In accordance with Section 8-17.5-102(2)(a), C.R.S., the Consultant shall not: 


(a) Knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under the 
Agreement; or 


(b) Enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to the Consultant 
that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under 
the Agreement. 


3. The Consultant represents and warrants it has confirmed the employment eligibility of all 
employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work under the Agreement through 
participation in either the E-Verify Program or the Department Program. 


4. The Consultant is prohibited from using either the E-Verify Program or the Department 
Program procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while the Agreement is in 
effect. 


5. If the Consultant obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under 
the Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, the Consultant shall: 


(a) Notify the subcontractor and the Authority within three days that the Consultant 
has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; and 


(b) Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three days of receiving 
the notice the subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that the 
Consultant shall not terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three days the 
subcontractor provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or 
contracted with an illegal alien. 


6. The Consultant shall comply with any reasonable request by the Colorado Department of 
Labor and Employment (“Department”) made in the course of an investigation that the Department is 
undertaking, pursuant to the law. 


7. If the Consultant violates any provision of Section 8-17.5–102(1), C.R.S., the Authority 
may terminate the Agreement immediately and the Consultant shall be liable to the Authority for actual 
and consequential damages of the Authority resulting from such termination, and the Authority shall 
report such violation by the Consultant to the Colorado Secretary of State, as required by law. 


 









































Beebe Draw Farms MD Nos. 1 & 2 and Authority Action Items Status Matrix (Updated 3/6/13)  


1 


 
Action	Items	 Date	of	


Meeting	
Assigned	


To	


Pr
io
ri
ty
	


N
ot
	S
ta
rt
ed
	


In
		P
ro
ce
ss
	


Re
oc
cu
rr
in
g	


Fo
llo
w
	u
p	


Re
qu
ir
ed
	


Co
m
pl
et
e	


Notes


Community	Center	Expansion	 03/08/11 		Linda
Angie	


X 	 04/12/11	– Committee	will	meet	on	April	14,	2011	at	6	
p.m.		Four	to	five	residents	expressed	interest	in	
attending.	
05/10/11	–	Linda	Cox	gave	a	report	on	the	outcome	of	
community	meeting	and	presented	a	memo	on	the	
expansion	of	the	community	center.		The	Board	asked	
the	committee	to	share	the	information	with	Halcyon	
Design,	LLC.	
06/3/11	–	committee	met	with	Halcyon	Design	(Kelly)	
and	shared	their	information.		Kelly	will	contact	the	
committee	when	the	work	is	complete.	
07/13/11	–	committee	meeting	scheduled	for	July	21,	
2011	at	7	p.m.		Kelly	will	present	2	designs	to	the	
committee.	
08/04/11	–	committee	met	and	will	present	
information	to	Authority	Board	in	September.	
08/09/11	–	The	Board	directed	the	committee	to	work	
with	Halcyon	Design,	LLC	to	prepare	a	plan	with	
elevations	and	then	schedule	a	work	session	to	present	
the	information	to	the	community.	
09/07/11	–	Metro	District/	POA	Fall	Pig	Roast	
scheduled	for	9/25/11	@	5:00	pm	where	a	presentation	
will	be	given	on	future	Community	Center	Expansion	
09/25/11	–	Community	will	preview	sketches	at	Pig	
Roast.	
11/04/11	–	Linda	and	Angie	will	give	an	update	at	the	
November	board	meeting.	
11/09/11	–	Kelly	to	provide	cost	estimate	of	Phase	1,	
Phase	2	and	full	project.		D1	will	draft	a	survey	to	all	
residents	soliciting	input	on	future	amenities.	
02/14/12	–	Cost	estimates	were	presented.		Committee	
will	prepare	an	FF&E	estimate	and	report	back	to	BOD.		
BOD	decided	to	hold	a	work	session	in	March	to	solicit	







Beebe Draw Farms MD Nos. 1 & 2 and Authority Action Items Status Matrix (Updated 3/6/13)  


2 


Action	Items	 Date	of	
Meeting	


Assigned	
To	


Pr
io
ri
ty
	


N
ot
	S
ta
rt
ed
	


In
		P
ro
ce
ss
	


Re
oc
cu
rr
in
g	


Fo
llo
w
	u
p	


Re
qu
ir
ed
	


Co
m
pl
et
e	


Notes


feedback	from	the	community.
04/18/12	–	work	session	held.		Expansion	will	be	
included	in	amenities	survey	that	will	be	distributed	to	
residents	soon.	
10/09/12	–	BOD	directed	staff	to	add	to	the	November	
agenda	discussions	on	the	design	and	construction	of	a	
new	maintenance	facility	as	the	first	phase	of	the	
expansion	of	the	community	center.	


Rules	and	Regulations	Regarding	
Amenities	
	


‐ Enforcement	of	oil	and	gas	
property	reclamation	


‐ Policy	for	mail	room	postings	
(who	is	responsible	and	how	long	
should	things	remain)	


‐ Use	of	community	of	center	and	
how	to	provide	access	


‐ Clarify	pool	party	rules	and	fees	


08/14/12 Mike
Doug	
	


X 	 The	Board	will	establish	a	resident	committee	to	draft	
the	Rules	and	Regulations.		Joe	to	draft	an	email	
soliciting	interest	from	community	members	and	
transmit	to	Liz	for	distribution.	
08/04/11	–	email	drafted	and	transmitted	to	residents.		
Jeff	is	the	contact	for	interested	parties.	
09/20/11	–	Committee	will	be	established	in	October	
2011.	
12/13/11	–	no	new	report.	
02/14/12	–	no	new	report.		Work	in	progress.	
04/18/12	–	no	new	report.	
06/28/12	–	no	new	report.	
07/10/12	–	no	new	report.	
08/17/12	–	Mike	to	establish	a	committee	to	create	a	
process	to	solicit	desires	of	community	members	and	
draft	rules	and	regulations	related	to	use	of	amenities.	
Include	MaryAnn	and	T.	Charles	Wilson	in	review	of	
draft	rules.	
10/09/12	–	Mike	will	schedule	a	meeting	with	the	
committee	in	the	next	30	days.	
11/7/12	–	Mike	held	meeting	on	October	25,	2012.		He	
will	provide	a	report	at	the	November	board	meeting.	
12/12/12	 –	 Mike	 will	 schedule	 another	 committee	
meeting.	
02/12/13	–	Doug	will	meet	with	committee	members	to	
draft	revisions	to	the	current	pool	rules	and	will	present	







Beebe Draw Farms MD Nos. 1 & 2 and Authority Action Items Status Matrix (Updated 3/6/13)  


3 


Action	Items	 Date	of	
Meeting	


Assigned	
To	


Pr
io
ri
ty
	


N
ot
	S
ta
rt
ed
	


In
		P
ro
ce
ss
	


Re
oc
cu
rr
in
g	


Fo
llo
w
	u
p	


Re
qu
ir
ed
	


Co
m
pl
et
e	


Notes


this	information	at	the	March	board	meeting.


‐ Lease	at	Milton	Lake	 08/09/11 Joe
Christine	
Jeff	


X 	 Joe,	Christine	and	Jeff	met	with	FRICO	to	discuss	
extending	the	term	of	the	lease	etc.		They	will	schedule	a	
follow‐up	meeting	with	FRICO	to	continue	the	
discussions.	
11/09/11	–	MaryAnn	to	draft	an	agreement	with	FRICO.	
12/13/11	–	BOD	directed	MaryAnn	to	send	FRICO	the	
assignment	of	the	lease	to	the	Authority	and	ask	them	to	
execute	and	to	request	a	meeting	to	discuss	terms	of	the	
lease	and	expansion	of	use.		BOD	also	directed	staff	to	
solicit	proposals	from	Environmental	Consultant.	
02/07/12	–	MaryAnn	has	spoken	with	an	
Environmental	consultant.		Information	that	was	
received	was	transmitted	to	the	Board.		MaryAnn	has	
also	drafted	the	assignment	to	FRICO	and	transmitted	it	
to	FRICO	for	review	and	execution.	
04/18/12	–	Geitner	Environmental	provided	a	report	to	
the	Board.		BOD	will	review	report	and	discuss	further	
at	May	meeting.	
06/14/12	–	BOD	decided	to	review	the	results	of	the	
amenities	survey	to	determine	desire	by	community	for	
recreational	use	on	Milton	Lake	before	moving	this	
agenda	item	forward.	
07/18/12	–	Surveys	sent	to	residents	for	response.	
11/7/12	–	surveys	complete.		Boating	on	Milton	
Reservoir	ranked	in	the	top	five	most	desirable	
amenities	and	it	also	ranked	very	high	with	negative	
votes.		Community	seems	divided	on	this	potential	
future	amenity.	


Law	Enforcement	Special	Duty	Agreement	
with	Weld	County	Sheriff	


09/13/11 Jeff
	


X Jeff	and	Christine	to	work	together	to	draft	an	
amendment	and/or	negotiate	a	new	agreement	with	
Weld	County	Sheriff.	
02/14/12	–	Jeff	will	meet	with	Weld	County	Sheriff	next	







Beebe Draw Farms MD Nos. 1 & 2 and Authority Action Items Status Matrix (Updated 3/6/13)  


4 


Action	Items	 Date	of	
Meeting	


Assigned	
To	


Pr
io
ri
ty
	


N
ot
	S
ta
rt
ed
	


In
		P
ro
ce
ss
	


Re
oc
cu
rr
in
g	


Fo
llo
w
	u
p	


Re
qu
ir
ed
	


Co
m
pl
et
e	


Notes


week.
04/04/12	–	Jeff	met	with	Weld	County	Sheriff.		Board	
and/or	staff	will	need	to	work	with	County	Attorney	on	
the	agreement.	
04/18/12	–	County	Attorney	will	draft	agreement	and	
route	to	the	BOD	for	review.		
06/14/12	–	work	in	progress.	
07/10/12	–	work	in	progress.	
08/17/12	–	Jeff	will	email	County	and	request	a	status.	
09/11/12	–	Jeff	will	email	County	and	request	a	status.	
10/09/12	‐	Jeff	will	email	County	and	request	a	status.	
12/12/12	‐	Jeff	will	email	County	and	request	a	status.	
03/06/13	–	Weld	County	has	approved	a	law	
enforcement	agreement	between	the	County	and	the	
Beebe	Draw	Law	Enforcement	Authority.			


Barrier	Around	Pool	Fence	 07/10/12 DeWayne
Dennis	
Dan	


X 	 Install	barrier	around	bottom	of	pool	fence	to	keep	
toads,	snakes,	etc.	out	of	pool	area.		DeWayne	will	install	
over	the	winter.	


Oil	and	Gas	Mapping	 08/14/12 Lisa
Tim	


X 	 BOD	approved	a	contract	with	Tamarack	Consulting	for	
the	 preparation	 of	 an	 oil	 and	 gas	 map.	 	 Liz	 prepared	
service	agreement	and	transmitted	to	Tim	McCarthy.	
09/11/12	–	work	in	progress.	
10/19/12	 –	 draft	 map	 was	 circulated	 to	 Joe	 and	
Christine	 for	 review.	 	 Christine	 provided	 comments.		
Tim	 to	 schedule	meeting	with	 Christine.	 	 Once	map	 is	
complete,	 Tim	 and	 Lisa	 will	 determine	 if	 all	 wells	 are	
being	taxed	correctly.	
11/7/12	 –	 Christine	 to	 schedule	 a	 meeting	 with	 Tim	
McCarty	to	finalize	the	map.	
12/4/12	–	Christine	met	with	Tim	and	Jason.	 	Tim	will	
work	 to	 finalize	 the	 map	 and	 then	 work	 with	 staff	 to	
ensure	 the	 oil	 and	 gas	 revenue	 from	 production	 is	
accurate	for	current	and	previous	years.	
1/28/13	–	Tim	 is	working	on	AV	and	Production	data.	







Beebe Draw Farms MD Nos. 1 & 2 and Authority Action Items Status Matrix (Updated 3/6/13)  


5 


Action	Items	 Date	of	
Meeting	


Assigned	
To	


Pr
io
ri
ty
	


N
ot
	S
ta
rt
ed
	


In
		P
ro
ce
ss
	


Re
oc
cu
rr
in
g	


Fo
llo
w
	u
p	


Re
qu
ir
ed
	


Co
m
pl
et
e	


Notes


He	 will	 also	 prepare	 a	 map	 showing	 parcels	 (existing	
and	planned)	with	pipeline,	 easements,	buffers	around	
well	 heads,	 etc.	 	 He	 will	 begin	 work	 on	 this	 map	 the	
week	of	January	28,	2013.	


Chemical	Room	at	Pool	 09/11/12 DeWayne
Dennis	


Dan	


X 	 DeWayne	 and	 Dennis	 to	 learn	 the	 operations	 of	 the	
mechanical	room	in	spring	2013.	


Oil	and	Gas	Committee	 10/09/12 Christine
Joe	


X 	 Christine	 will	 meet	 with	 the	 oil	 and	 gas	 committee	 to	
review	 the	 recommended	 changes	 to	 the	 surface	 use	
agreements.		Joe	and	Christine	will	contact	Dufford	and	
Brown	 and	 request	 a	 detailed	 explanation	 of	 charges	
received	to	date.	


Cheat	Grass	Mitigation	 10/09/12 Linda X 	 Linda	 has	 contacted	 CSU	 extension	 for	 best	 times	 to	
treat	and	a	list	of	vendors	to	solicit	cost	of	product.			
10/11/12	–	DeWayne	has	purchased	the	chemicals.	
12/4/12	 –	 DeWayne	 had	 to	 rebuild	 sprayer.	 	 He	 will	
coordinate	with	Tina	Booten	in	early	Spring	to	 identify	
cheat	grass	areas	for	spraying.	


Landscape	Master	Plan	at	Entry	and	
Gatehouse	


10/09/12 Linda X 	 Linda	will	contact	Alpine	Gardens	to	request	a	proposal	
to	 prepare	 a	 master	 plan	 of	 the	 area.	 	 She	 will	 also	
contact	 the	 CSU	 extension	 to	 determine	 if	 they	 have	 a	
program	that	would	address	design	and	maintenance.	
11/7/12	–	Linda	met	with	Alpine	Gardens	and	will	have	
a	proposal	to	review	at	the	December	meeting.	
02/12/13	 –	 Linda	 will	 contact	 Alpine	 Gardens	 to	
provide	 a	 proposal	 for	 review	 at	 the	 March	 2013	
meeting.	


2013	Pool	Manager	 02/12/13 Lisa X 	 Lisa	 to	draft	solicitation	 for	2013	pool	manager.	 	Doug	
posted	 notice	 in	 mail	 room.	 	 Lisa	 transmitted	
information	via	email	to	all	residents.		Resumes	are	due	
March	20,	2013.	


Budget	Items	and	Future	Projects	for	
Consideration	


Authority
	


X 	 Costs	and/or	decisions	for	the	following:
1. ‐Pool	tile	repair	and	pool	contractor	for	2013–	







Beebe Draw Farms MD Nos. 1 & 2 and Authority Action Items Status Matrix (Updated 3/6/13)  


6 


Action	Items	 Date	of	
Meeting	


Assigned	
To	


Pr
io
ri
ty
	


N
ot
	S
ta
rt
ed
	


In
		P
ro
ce
ss
	


Re
oc
cu
rr
in
g	


Fo
llo
w
	u
p	


Re
qu
ir
ed
	


Co
m
pl
et
e	


Notes


bids	in	October,	work	to	be	completed	in	spring	
2013.	


2. ‐Tree	thinning	at	Lake	Christina	‐	ongoing	
3. ‐Gatehouse	 ‐	 interior	 repairs	 to	 drywall	 from	


plumbing	leak	(Dennis	and	DeWayne)	
4. ‐Purchase	cover	for	stainless	steel	BBQ	at	pool	
5. ‐Tractor	AC	repairs	
6. ‐Pool	furnishings	–	1‐	lounge	chair,	20	chairs,	15	


mini‐tables	–	recommend	replacing	with	a	
darker	color.	


7. ‐Pool	Lift	to	meet	ADA	requirements	–	on	hold,	
Authority	needs	to	develop	a	plan	for	addressing	
in	future	years	once	major	structural	changes	
are	made	to	the	pool.	


8. ‐Robot	for	pool	–	purchase	new	one	in	2013.	
9. ‐Front	button	on	drinking	fountain	does	not	


work.		Repair	to	occur	in	spring	2013.	
10. ‐On	and	off	smell	of	chlorine	gas	and	natural	gas	


in	mechanical	room.		Will	address	in	spring	
2013.	


11. ‐Water	level	sensors	for	both	pools	are	not	
working	properly.		Wading	pool	overflows,	large	
pool	needs	to	be	filled	with	hose.		Will	be	
addressed	in	spring	2013.	


12. ‐Need	new	sprayer	to	hose	down	pool	deck	and	
rinse	vacuum	bag.		Will	be	addressed	in	spring	
2013.	
	


13. ‐Fan	in	women’s	bathroom	not	working.		Will	be	
addressed	in	spring	2013.	


14. ‐Round	pieces	in	bottom	of	skimmer	are	
missing.	Will	be	addressed	in	spring	2013.	


15. ‐Back	flushing	pumps	is	very	difficult	as	handles	
are	hard	to	move	–	same	for	handles	to	manually	







Beebe Draw Farms MD Nos. 1 & 2 and Authority Action Items Status Matrix (Updated 3/6/13)  


7 


Action	Items	 Date	of	
Meeting	


Assigned	
To	


Pr
io
ri
ty
	


N
ot
	S
ta
rt
ed
	


In
		P
ro
ce
ss
	


Re
oc
cu
rr
in
g	


Fo
llo
w
	u
p	


Re
qu
ir
ed
	


Co
m
pl
et
e	


Notes


vacuum	pool. Will	be	addressed	in	spring	2013.	
16. ‐solicit	proposals	for	the	2013	audit.	
17. ‐Re‐work	 irrigation	 system	around	 sport	 court,	


not	 enough	 gpm	 to	 provide	 sufficient	water	 to	
trees	(were	hand‐watered	all	summer)	


 








BEEBE DRAW FARMS AUTHORITY 
141 Union Boulevard, Suite 150 


Lakewood, Colorado  80228-1898 
Tel: 303-987-0835  800-741-3254 


Fax: 303-987-2032 
 


A copy of the agenda/meeting packet is available at the Beebe Draw Farms website at: 
http://plr.sdmsi.com 


 
NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING AND AGENDA 


 
Board of Directors: Office: Term Expires: 
Paul “Joe” Knopinski President April 2013 
Jeffrey T. Hare Vice-President April 2014 
Michael Welch Treasurer April 2013 
Christine Hethcock Assistant Secretary April 2014 
Lisa A. Johnson Secretary 
 
DATE:  March 12, 2013 
TIME:  6:00 P.M. 
PLACE: Pelican Lake Ranch Community Info and Sales Center 


16502 Beebe Draw Farms Parkway  
Platteville, Colorado 
 


I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 


A. Present Disclosures and Potential Conflicts of Interest. 
  


 
B. Approve Agenda. 


  
 
C. FIRST READING: 


 
1.   


 
D. SECOND READING: 


 
1.   


 
E. EMERGENCY READING: 


 
1.   


 
 







Beebe Draw Farms Authority 
Agenda – March 12, 2013 
Page 2 
 
 
II. CONSENT AGENDA 
 


These items are considered to be routine and will be approved and/or ratified by one motion. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board member so requests; in 
which event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in the 
Regular Agenda. 


 
 Review and approve Minutes of the February 12, 2013 regular meeting 


(enclosure). 
 


 Review and consider approval of payment of claims through the period ending 
March 12, 2013, as follows (to be distributed): 


 
General Fund $  
Infrastructure Fund $  
Amenities Fund $  
Total Claims: $  
 


 Review and accept unaudited financial statements through the period ending 
January 31, 2013 (enclosure). 
 


 Ratify approval of Service Agreement for a 2013 Tree Program between the 
Authority and BioTree, LLC (enclosure). 
  


 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 


A.   
 
IV. FINANCIAL MATTERS 
 


A. FIRST READING: 
 


1.   
 


B. SECOND READING: 
 


1.   
 


C. EMERGENCY READING: 
 


1.   







Beebe Draw Farms Authority 
Agenda – March 12, 2013 
Page 3 
 
 
V. LEGAL MATTERS 


 
A. Acknowledge Law Enforcement Agreement between the Weld County Sheriff and 


Beebe Draw Law Enforcement Authority District (enclosure). 
  


 
B. FIRST READING: 


 
1.   


 
C. SECOND READING: 


 
1.   


 
D. EMERGENCY READING: 


 
1.   


 
VI. OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE 
 


A. Discuss items requiring action from the Authority Board from the Action Items 
Status Matrix (enclosure). 
  


 
B. Discuss status of the rules and regulations committee for the Authority’s amenities 


(enclosure). 
  
 


C. Discuss status of hiring for pool manager position. 
  
 


D. FIRST READING: 
 


1.   
 


E. SECOND READING: 
 


1. Discuss status of proposal from Alpine Gardens for landscape improvements 
at the gatehouse and community entry way (to be distributed). 
  


 
F. EMERGENCY READING: 


 
1.   







Beebe Draw Farms Authority 
Agenda – March 12, 2013 
Page 4 
 
 
VII. CAPITAL AMENITIES 


 
A. Discuss the potential acquisition of undeveloped property from the developer. 


  
 


B. Discussions related to the design and construction of a new maintenance facility. 
  


 
1. Ratify approval of proposal from Halcyon Design LLC to provide a plan 


layout of a new maintenance facility for an amount not to exceed $1,080 
(enclosure). 
  


 
C. Discussions related to increasing the operation and maintenance reserve. 


  
 


D. FIRST READING: 
 


1.   
 


E. SECOND READING: 
 


1. Ratify authorization of Director Welch and Mr. Tabor to negotiate and retain 
an appraiser for an amount not to exceed $20,000 for land outside of Filing 
No. 1 owned by REI. 
  


 
F. EMERGENCY READING: 


 
1.   


 
VIII. INFRASTRUCTURE 
 


A. FIRST READING: 
 


1.   
 


B. SECOND READING: 
 


1. Consider approval of new street signs in the community. 
  







Beebe Draw Farms Authority 
Agenda – March 12, 2013 
Page 5 
 
 


C. EMERGENCY READING: 
 


1.   
 
IX. OTHER BUSINESS 
 


A.   
 
X. ADJOURNMENT THE NEXT MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR APRIL 9, 2013. 
 








RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 


 


Page 1 February 12, 2013 


  MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
BEEBE DRAW FARMS AUTHORITY 


HELD 
FEBRUARY 12, 2013 


 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors (referred to hereafter as the “Board”) 
of the Beebe Draw Farms Authority (referred to hereafter as the “Authority”) was 
convened on Tuesday, the 12th day of February, 2013, at 6:00 P.M., at the Pelican 
Lake Ranch Community Info and Sales Center, 16502 Beebe Draw Farms 
Parkway, Platteville, Colorado.  The meeting was open to the public. 
   
 


ATTENDANCE 
 


 Directors In Attendance Were: 
Paul “Joe” Knopinski, President 
Jeffrey T. Hare 
Michael Welch 
Christine Hethcock (via speakerphone) 
 
Also In Attendance Were: 
Lisa Johnson; Special District Management Services, Inc. 
 
MaryAnn McGeady, Esq. (via speakerphone); McGeady Sisneros, P.C. 
 
Linda Cox, Angie Powell and Doug Tabor; Beebe Draw Farms Metropolitan
District No. 1 Board members 
 
DeWayne Colby; Property Manager 
 
See attached sign-in sheet for additional attendees. 
  
 


DISCLOSURE OF 
POTENTIAL 
CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST 


 Disclosures of Potential Conflicts of Interest:  The Board discussed the 
requirements pursuant to the Colorado Revised Statutes to disclose any potential
conflicts of interest or potential breaches of fiduciary duty to the Board of
Directors and to the Secretary of State. 
 
Ms. Johnson noted that a quorum was present and requested members of the
Board disclose any potential conflicts of interest with regard to any matters
scheduled for discussion at this meeting, and incorporated for the record those
applicable disclosures made by the Board members prior to this meeting in
accordance with the statute.  It was noted that Directors Hethcock and 
Knopinski’s Disclosure Statements have been filed. 







RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 


 


Page 2 February 12, 2013 


ADMINISTRATIVE 
MATTERS 


 Agenda:  Ms. Johnson distributed for the Board’s review and approval a proposed 
Agenda for the Authority's regular meeting. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Hare, seconded by 
President Knopinski and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Agenda was 
approved, as amended. 
 
Resolution No. 2013-02-01 regarding 24-hour Posting Place:  The Board 
considered Resolution No. 2013-02-01 designating the place at which notice will 
be posted at least 24 hours prior to each meeting. 
 
Following review, upon motion duly made by Director Hare, seconded by 
Director Welch and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board adopted
Resolution No. 2013-02-01, as presented.  A copy of the Resolution is attached
hereto, and incorporated herein, by this reference. 
 
Director Terms:  The Board entered into discussion regarding directors’ terms 
and expiration thereof.  It was noted that President Knopinski and Director
Welch’s terms expire on April 12, 2013 and the Board discussed the process for
appointing directors to fill these positions.  Attorney McGeady suggested the 
extension of President Knopinski and Director Welch’s terms until the next
regular Board meetings for District 1 and District 2 on June 11, 2013 to avoid the
expense to schedule special meetings for these districts in April, which would 
otherwise be necessary in order to nominate, vote and appoint new Authority
Board members.  It was noted that the Board members in attendance from 
District 1 and District 2 unanimously supported the extension of the terms of
President Knopinski and Director Welch until the June 11, 2013 meetings. 
  
 


CONSENT AGENDA  Consent Agenda:  The Board considered the following actions: 
 


 Review and approve Minutes of the December 11, 2012 regular meeting.
 


 Review and ratify approval of  the payment of claims through the period 
ending January 15, 2013, as follows:  


  
General Fund: $ 52,702.36 
Infrastructure Fund $  5,897.70 
Amenities Fund $  5,816.69 
Total: $  64,416.75 


 
 
 







RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 


 


Page 3 February 12, 2013 


 Review and approve the payment of claims through the period ending 
February 12, 2013, as follows:  


General Fund: $ 34,253.24 
Infrastructure Fund $  2,087.50 
Amenities Fund $  -0- 
Total: $  36,340.74 


 
 Review and accept unaudited financial statements through the period 


ending December 31, 2012. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Hare, seconded by
Director Welch and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board approved the
consent agenda. 
  
 


PUBLIC COMMENT  Public Comment:  There were no public comments. 
  
 


FINANCIAL 
MATTERS 


 EMERGENCY READING 
 
Procedure for Payroll and Reimbursement Checks in between Board 
Meetings:  The Board entered into discussion regarding a procedure for
processing payroll and reimbursement checks in between Board meetings and
considered approval of a resolution regarding the same.  Ms. Johnson explained
the bank’s policy which requires two signatures on any check over $2,500.  The 
Board discussed authorizing Ms. Johnson or a Board member to sign payroll
checks and reimbursement checks up to $5,000, with the requirement of only one
signature and authorizing the bank to process checks that have one signature if 
equal or less than $5,000. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Hare, seconded by
Director Welch and, upon vote, unanimously carried, the Board authorized 
Special District Management Services, Inc. (“SDMS”) to process checks (and to 
have exclusive possession of all Authority checks) with one signature of a Board
member or Lisa Johnson, as Authority Manager, for up to $5,000 for payment of
payroll or reimbursement to employees or Board members for Authority expenses 
and authorized the bank instructions to be revised to allow checks less than $5,000
to be processed with one signature of a Board member or Lisa Johnson and 
approved Resolution No. 2013-02-02 regarding the procedure as described above.
  
 
 
 







RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 


 


Page 4 February 12, 2013 


OPERATIONS AND
MAINTENANCE 


 Action Items Status:  The Board reviewed the action items status matrix, which 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Rules and Regulations Committee for the Authority’s Amenities:  The Board 
entered into discussion regarding the rules and regulations and the associated 
committee.  The Board discussed use of the pool for reserved events, including 
discussion regarding times the pool would be available for rental, an alcohol 
policy and if life guards would be present/required.  It was noted that Mr. Tabor 
will meet with the District 1 Board members individually to gather ideas, 
incorporate these ideas into the existing rules and regulations and the committee 
will hold a community meeting to obtain the public’s input.  The Board reiterated 
the need to have any revisions to the rules and regulations considered at a 
minimum of two Board meetings prior to approval. 
 
Summer Pool Staff:  The Board entered into discussion regarding the process for 
hiring of summer pool staff, specifically the pool manager. 
 
Following discussion, the Board directed Ms. Johnson to draft a job posting for 
the pool manager position and display it in the mailroom. 
  
 


CAPITAL 
AMENITIES 


 Work Session to Discuss Potential Acquisition of Undeveloped Property from 
Developer:  The Board entered into discussion regarding the potential acquisition
of undeveloped property from the developer.  Director Hare reviewed with the 
Board a 12-year forecast beginning in 2013 illustrating the growth and use over 
time of the Infrastructure Fund and Amenities Fund with and without the land
purchase. 
 
Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Hare, seconded by 
Director Welch and, upon vote, carried with Directors Hare, Welch and President 
Knopinski voting “Yes” and Director Hethcock abstaining, the Board authorized 
Director Welch and Mr. Tabor to negotiate and retain an appraiser on a time and 
materials basis for an amount up to $20,000 for land outside of Filing 1 owned by 
REI with a value not based upon development potential but on a bulk sale. 
 
Design and Construction of a New Maintenance Facility:  The Board entered 
into discussion regarding the status of the design and construction of a new 
maintenance facility.  Director Hare presented ideas related to a new maintenance 
facility.  The committee will consider his ideas as they discuss the new
maintenance facility. 
 
Operation and Maintenance Reserve:  The Board entered into discussion 
related to increasing the operation and maintenance reserve.  Director Hare 







RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
 


 


Page 5 February 12, 2013 


suggested the Board review the amenities survey results prior to the next meeting
and be prepared to take action on a plan to move forward with the items above as
well as the expansion of the community center. 
  
 


INFRASTRUCTURE  SECOND READING: 
 
New Street Signs in the Community:  Director Hethcock and Mr. Colby will 
drive around the community to make a list of new street signs needed for the 
community.  Ms. Cox volunteered to help with this project. 
  
 


ADJOURNMENT  There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, upon
motion duly made, seconded, and upon vote, unanimously carried, the meeting 
was adjourned. 
 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
By  
 Secretary for the Meeting 


 
 
 
THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL FEBRUARY 12, 
2013 MINUTES OF BEEBE DRAW FARMS AUTHORITY BY THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS SIGNING BELOW: 
 
   
Paul “Joe” Knopinski 
 
  
Jeffrey T. Hare 
 
  
Michael Welch 
 
  
Christine Hethcock 


 













		February 12, 2013 Minutes

		scanner@sdmsi.com_20130306_145542
























